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FISCAL YEAR 2022
BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING

SEPTEMBER 27, 2021						    6:00 P.M.

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 Budget Public Hearing was called to order by Mayor Messam on Monday, September 27, 2021, at 6:07 p.m. in the Commission Chambers, Miramar City Hall, 2300 Civic Center Place, Miramar, Florida

Upon call of the roll, the following members of the City Commission were present:

Mayor Wayne M. Messam 
Vice Mayor Yvette Colbourne 
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers (Remote)
Commissioner Alexandra P. Davis

Upon call of the roll, the following member of the City Commission was absent:

Commissioner Winston F. Barnes

The following members of staff were present:

City Manager Vernon Hargray
City Attorney Norman Powell 
City Clerk Denise A. Gibbs

MAYOR MESSAM: Good evening everyone.  This is the second public hearing on the millage and budget for 2022 fiscal year.  An opportunity was given to the public to email the City Clerk prior to the public hearing with any questions, comments, concerns, on items we will hear on this evening’s agenda.  Any person may be heard by the Commission through the chair, and upon registering, pursuant to the published notice, for not more than three minutes on any proposition before the hearing unless modified by the chair.  This public hearing is being streamed live at miramarfl.gov/commissionmeeting, and televised on Comcast channel 78, and AT&T U-verse subscribers on channel 99 for City of Miramar subscribers.  As of September 27th at 10:30 a.m., no members from the public have registered to participate in the meeting and listening only mode.  If someone registers after said time and would like to speak, they can raise their hand at the appropriate time; our IT staff will unmute their mic to allow them to speak.  Please be sure to mention your name, address -- your name and address for the record prior to addressing the Commission.  At this time, Madam Clerk, please call the roll.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Mayor Messam.

MAYOR MESSAM: Here.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Chambers.

COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Here.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Vice Mayor Colbourne.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Here.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Davis.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Here.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: City Manager Hargray.

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: Here.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: City Attorney Powell.

CITY ATTORNEY POWELL: Here.


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MAYOR MESSAM: Let us all rise for the pledge of allegiance.  (Pledge recited)


A MOMENT OF SILENCE

MAYOR MESSAM: A
 

PRESENTATIONS

NONE


PUBLIC HEARING

MAYOR MESSAM: Item number one, please.  

1.	SECOND READING of Temp. Ord. #O1779 establishing and adopting the City of Miramar Ad Valorem Tax Operating Millage Levy Rate at 7.1172 Mills, or $7.1172 per thousand dollars of taxable assessed property value for the 2021 Tax Year, which is 4.45% greater than the rolled‑back rate of 6.8137 Mills; providing for conflicts; and providing for an effective date.  (Passed 1st Reading on 09/13/21) (Management & Budget Director Rafael Sanmiguel) 

CITY ATTORNEY POWELL: An ordinance of the City Commission of the City of Miramar, Florida, establishing and adopting the City of Miramar ad valorem tax operating millage levy rate at 7.1172 mils, or $7.1172 per thousand dollars of taxable assessed property value for the 2021 Tax Year, which is 4.45% greater than the rolled‑back rate of 6.8137 mils; providing for conflicts; and providing for an effective date.  Chapter 200.065(2)(e)(1), Florida Statutes, requires that the governing body of the City shall adopt its proposed millage rate prior to adopting it’s tentative budget.  The establishment of a millage rate is necessary to generate ad valorem tax revenues, which, in part, are necessary to fund the General Fund budget.  The City has proposed a millage rate of 7.1172 mils.  This rate constitutes a 4.45 percent increase compared with the rollback rate of 6.8137 mils.  The rollback rate is the rate that would be needed to bring in the same ad valorem tax revenue as last year.  In addition, Section 200.065(2)(d), Florida Statutes, requires that prior to the adoption of the millage levy, the Mayor make the following public announcement.

MAYOR MESSAM: The proposed millage rate set by the Miramar City Commission on July 7th was 7.1172 mils.  At the first budget hearing on September 13, 2021, the City Commission adopted the proposed millage rate of 7.1172 mils, representing an -- 4.45 percent increase compared with the rollback rate of 6.8137 mils, which is necessary to fund the budget.  We, as the governing body of the City of Miramar, shall now hear a presentation from staff regarding the proposed millage rate.  Please note that staff’s presentation will include item number three.  Appearing remotely is Mr. Peter Napoli from Stantec.  Now I’ll turn it -- now for our staff presentation on millage rate.  At this time, if you have registered, please raise your hand to speak, and if you are in the Chambers -- IT will recognize you at the time after the presentation.  So, at this time, we’ll have staff give the presentation on the millage rate.  Staff, you’re recognized.

MR. SANMIGUEL: Thank you, Mayor.  Good evening, Mayor, Vice Mayor, and Commissioners.  Rafael Sanmiguel with the Management & Budget Department.  I am here to present the second reading of the millage and the budget ordinances.  So for those of you who missed the first meeting, I’d like to do a recap of the whole presentation a little bit, and then I’m gong to do changes from the first reading.  So the budget philosophy for the next fiscal year is to bring you a fiscally responsible budget that maintains the high level of existing services that each resident has come to expect.  It maintains the quality of live for residents and business throughout the various offerings, and at the same time tries to maintain a healthy level of fund balance amid a very challenging financial environment.  We have accomplished the creation of this budget without a millage rate increase, and without a fire assessment fee increase for the residents and the businesses of the City.  So the total fiscal year 2022 budget is $355 million for all funds, with the General Fund taking the largest portion of 53 percent of that.  Enterprise funds, which include utility and storm water funds at 21 percent.  Internal service funds, which include the health, risk, fleet, and IT funds at 13 percent.  Capital projects funds at seven percent.  The debt service funds, three percent.  Special revenue funds, which includes the federal, state, and local grants funds at three percent, and other sub-funds at less than one percent.  So in terms of the sources of revenues for the general fund, the ad valorem taxes, which make up our largest and steadiest revenue, is 43 percent or around $78 million.  Permit fees and special assessments, which include build -- building permits, franchise fees, fire protection at 21 percent of that.  Other taxes, which include utility taxes, insurance premium taxes, communication service taxes, and local business taxes at ten percent.  Charges for services, which include ticket sales, rentals, and park fees at nine percent.  Intergovernmental, such as State revenue sharing, and local -- local government half-cent sales tax is nine percent, and the remaining eight percent is mainly transfers from grants funds and the sales of assets.  So if we break down the expenses by use categories here, bottom right, you’ll the see the salaries and benefits, which make up our largest viable expense at 69 percent for the City; 21 percent for operating expenses; and the remaining ten percent is mainly comprised of transfers to CIP and debt funds, and departmental capital outlays, such as vehicle replacement program, and the OPEB and pension trust transfers.  So if we break down the General Fund salaries and benefits further, employee pay stands at 60 percent, and pension at 20 percent, so together that’s 80 percent for current employee pay, and the current and future retiree pay.  The health holding steady at seven percent; payroll tax and Worker’s Comp at four percent each; and other benefits at five percent.  So breaking down the General Fund by category, the lion’s share, which is public safety, stands at more than half or 52 percent.  The remaining 48 percent is made up by community and culture, which includes Cultural Arts, Parks & Recreation, and Community Services at 19 percent.  Administration, which includes Human Resources, Finance, Procurement, City Clerk’s Office, City Manager’s Office, Management & Budget, City Commission, and Legal is 12 percent.  Public Works is five percent.  Other, which includes non-departmental, is at five percent.  And debt service, which includes transfers out to debt service is at seven percent.  So, again, we’re not proposing to raise the millage rate, and we did not raise the fire assessment fee.  The proposed millage rate for fiscal year ’22 is 7.1172, which is 4.45 percent greater than the rollback rate of 6.8137.  The residential fire fee is unchanged from last year’s at $398.23.  So looking at the lower left chart, talking about the average homesteaded, single-family taxable value has gone up by $4,826.00, and that increase is wholly due to the property valuation increase, which are capped for the homestead properties at about 1.5 percent for the Save Our Home provision.  So that means that the average homesteaded property will see a modest tax increase of $34.34 pr $2.86 per month in fiscal year ’22.  Likewise, for the average commercial on the right chart -- right bottom chart, the average taxable value for the average commercial has increased by $29,300.00, which corresponds to a city tax increase of $209.00, and the average commercial has gone up in size by 143 square feet, which corresponds to a increased fire assessment of $107.00.  So, together, that is $316.00 per year, or less than $1.00 per day.  So just to remind folks, the City of Miramar represents only 35 percent of the total tax bill that you get from the County.  The remaining 65 percent is comprised of the School Board at 32 percent, the County at 28 percent, and others, which includes the hospital districts, the South Florida Water Management District, and the Florida Inland Navigation District.  So each of these districts -- districts, they have their own separate board meetings, where they set their individual rates, and I do encourage residents to contact those entities and attend those meetings regarding their portion of the tax bill.  So in -- in terms of the changes to the budget from the first reading, I’m going to cover some of the highlights of those changes.  So in regards to the City Manager’s Office, the chief operations officer is remaining in that department, and no longer moving to the Community Develop -- Development Department.  So this is a net zero impact to the budget.  Parks & Recreation sees a net change of $285,000.00; Community Develop -- I’m sorry, Community Services sees a net change of $54,500.00; and Cultural Affairs sees a net change of $367,200.00.  So, as a preview, here’s a list of all City events that are funded Parks & Recreation.  I’m going to show this slide in a -- in a little bit, and these are all of the City-funded events, funded in Parks & Recreation that are scheduled for next year.  Moving on, non-departmental went up by $3.1 million; major factors are transfers to capital projects of $1.1 million.  Transfers to Affordable Housing Trust Fund of $2 million, so those are the driving factors for that.  In terms of the sources of funds for the General Fund, you can see the adjustment of revenues here; the major component is $3.2 million increase in use of fund balance to pay for the expense changes since the first reading.  Debt service funds were adjusted by $194,800.00, and, per Commission request, $1.15 million has been added to the capital project funds to fund added CIP, and the detail is on your screen.  So the next two slides will show all of the events that are scheduled for fiscal year 2022, and the levels of funding for the events.  So these are the City events that are funded in Parks & Recreation; so we have nine events funded at a level of $430,000.00 total, and you can see the detail on your screens.  And these are the Commission-hosted events that are funded in the City Manager’s Office.  Each Com -- each -- each elected official will host one event at a level of $75,000.00, and one event at a level of $50,000.00, and here is the detailed breakdown for those events.  So I would like to shift gears now, and introduce Chief Budget Officer Norm Mason, who will be discussing other budget considerations.  

MR. MASON: Good evening.  Thank you, Raf.  The last two years, as you know, have been very challenging, in terms of expenditures, as well as revenues, so I’m going to go over five areas, or the five-year solutions of some of the areas that the City Manager has addressed with the Budget Department, and all departments have worked in -- in cohesion with that.  The introduction of the Voluntary Retirement Incentive Plan helped to mitigate the increases in salaries and benefits that have been occurring for the past decade, really, and so that has been instrumental in slowing down that growth.  Collective bargaining agreements were all ratified, so that was critical, especially to the Budget Department, to do a five-year forecast, but specifically the next three years going forward, so you and all of us, as well as the residents, know what we’re working with in terms of those increases and agreements to collective bargaining.  The Miramar Wellness Center, to address another issue I’ve talked about for a number of years in terms of the healthcare increases that everyone faces, so that has been instrumental through Human Resources to introduce that and work with Dr. Sales.  The healthcare self-funding, another critical area from a financial aspect, as well as helping address each individual, in terms of wellness, and so that is a reduction to expense and healthcare.  The American Rescue Plan Act critical to our city, as well as others in this pandemic, which is not over, but that funding will help us, and I’ll go into detail on the funds we received, as you heard before, but that is critical to our budget.  Without that, we’d be facing major issues that I wouldn’t have solutions for.  Bond re-funding has also brought us savings across the board that can be utilized to fund things, as you just saw from the director of management and budget; a lot of those things were savings resulting from bond re-funding.  Now, as I just said, the American Rescue Plan Act, those funds that have been received at this point, in accordance with the Financial Department, and the work on the application was the $11 million you see for calendar year ’20.  So that was revenue that was lost due to COVID in the calendar year ’20, so that’s how the American Rescue Plan Act works on a calendar year basis.  In ’21, it’s been identified -- obviously, we all know there’s about 95 days left in this calendar year, but, at this point, that’s an estimate of $5 million for lost revenue associated with COVID for the calendar year of ’21.  And then the most precarious number is the estimate for ’22, which we haven’t even started yet, calendar year ’22, so none of us can know when COVID, as I’ve said, in my opinion, when no one is wearing a mask, absolutely, then we’ll be able to do some more solid revenue projections going forward.  So, right now, our estimate is about $2 million of lost revenue in the calendar year of ’22.  So that’s a total of $18 million will be utilized for lost revenue.  And I -- I just want to point out one thing.  When you run a -- a city or an organization, it’s one thing to come under budget in your expenses, so you come in under budget, okay, and in a normal year your revenues come in, so you have a savings, because you’re under budget in your expenses.  But when you lose revenues, your revenues are pitted against your expenses, so just because your under budget in expenses, it doesn’t mean that money all goes to fund balance, because you have to make up for the loss of revenue.  So that’s what COVID has done, introduced a loss of revenue; no matter how much you save in expenses, you still have to offset the revenue as well.  So we’re proposing, at this point -- again, remember the estimate for ’22 is completely an estimate of $2 million, but that would leave $4 million that we’re proposing with the City Manager, at this point through his direction, for community outreach, and allowable infrastructure projects.  So that’s a recap of the $22 million associated with ARPA and it’s use in the City of Miramar.  I want to take a moment, since I have the opportunity.  Staff informs me we received a lot of calls from residents about property taxes.  I -- I just want to take a moment, and I thank you for the opportunity to look at Broward County, of which Miramar is one of the four major cities, of course, out of the 31, and just look at what’s happening in the housing market, as well as the next topic would be the Save Our Homes legislation to help them understand how that has affected their property taxes, as well as the Consumer Price Index, which is key, really key to the Save Our Homes legislation.  And the last topic, maybe one more homeowner savings, how that affects you, in terms of the housing market for all of Broward County, but specifically for Miramar.  Okay.  So real quick, the median home price that was actually sold -- I picked the median, not the average, because an average is skewered when you have your higher price or lower prices, but like mansions and those when you have high-dollar items, your average is not representative.  So the median home sale price, so of all the homes sold in 2012, actual home sales that the Appraiser has on the books for 2012.  The middle property, right in the middle, if there were 50,000 sold, this is the 25,000 property right in the middle was $180,000.00, approximately.  The median home sale price in 2021, as of August 31st, is $330,000.00, just under that.  So that increase, for illustrative purposes, is 83 percent, so we all know the frenzy in the housing market, but I wanted to show you for all of Broward County, that’s about a seven percent annual growth rate.  The reason it’s not 8.3 is you have a growth factor, so it’s compounded, so each year, every year over the past decade, it’s grown at about seven percent.  We’re all aware, probably, from this year to last August, it’s about 16 percent, but the overall average is seven percent per year, every year for the last ten years.  And just for information to see how much volume is, there’s 5,506 active listings right now in Broward County, and that doesn’t count a lot of the for sale by owner, but those are the registered listing, 5,506 on August 31st, so you see an active market.  Okay.  So this is key as we talk to homeowners who call us.  I’m going to read it, because it’s key.  The Florida Constitution was amended January 1st, 1995, to limit annual increases in your assessed value of property with the Homestead Exemption, and it was set at that time to cap at three percent.  But this is the key part of the sentence, “… or the change in the Consumer Price Index, whichever is lower.”  Okay.  So whichever is lower.  It doesn’t mean it’s always going to be three percent, so that’s a good thing if the CPI is lower.  So let’s look at the last ten years, and you can see, if you started at the bottom, in 2012 the last time the Consumer Price Index -- was a change of three percent from one year to the next.  The following nine years has been less then three percent; I’m going to say seven of them or so, less than two percent.  But anyway you can see 1.4 percent was the cap in 2021.  So what does that mean?  It means the homesteaded property went up 1.4 percent, not three percent, but your taxable value went up 1.4 percent if it was homesteaded; if it was homesteaded.  In the previous year 2.3, and you see -- can see the succession.  So only one time out of ten years -- I’m just showing you, that it didn’t go back even three percent, which it was designed for to go up three percent.  So what is that?  A 17.5 increase in ten years.  And what did I show you; the homeowner values and sales are going up over 80 percent, but your taxable value, if homesteaded, has gone up 17 and a half percent; it’s right there, that’s the cap, so that’s about 1.75 percent a year.  So that’s the good news.  The next slide will show you that if you sell your home, of course, you -- you’ve had a median home sale price increase of 83 percent over the ten years, so that’s a good thing for the value.  If your property wasn’t homesteaded, guess what?  You’re subject to those increases, because it doesn’t pertain to the legislation.  So that’s why non-homesteaded properties have significant increases, so you can see the seven percent annual growth, and I explain this to the homeowner, so I just want to recap this for everyone.  The cap hasn’t even gone up three percent.  So you see that 17.5, if inflation was higher, that would be 30 percent, because it would have gone up three percent every year.  But, instead, it went up 17 and a half.  So, annually, the savings for a homeowner is about five and a quarter percent, because it’s been going up 1.75; that’s a fact.  That’s not a estimate, that is the fact; it went up 1.75.  And your average growth in Broward County, of which I’m sure Miramar is a premier city of the four major cities in Broward County has experienced even higher growth than that, but average of seven percent.  So the average homeowner with a homesteaded property has saved about five and quarter percent on your taxes.  So I want to show everybody that the driving force in your taxes is the taxable value.  Because nobody’s -- no cities millage rate has gone up 83 percent; you would exceed the maximum allowed.  So a lot of residents -- I just want to inform them that that’s the part, as we talk to them on the phone, the real driving factor of your taxes is the taxable value, and so that’s with the benefit of the Save Our Home, and if you don’t have that, and it’s non-homesteaded, you face increases.  And just think, without that legislation, everyone would face that increase of 83 percent over the last ten years.  Okay.  So I want to show that again.  This is a repeat, but what I just spoke of is on the far left, 35 percent of your bill is for the City of Miramar.  So the things I spoke about, in terms of Save Our Homes, and your property taxes in Miramar pertains to that 35 percent.  And, again, as the Director said, I would encourage all of you to remain active as today, and participatory in your other taxing districts there of the School Board, the County, and other is the remaining 65 percent of the tax bill.  So tonight the City Manager recommends and seeks approval of the 7.1172 operating millage rate, which is remaining the same for the fourth consecutive year, and approval of the FY ’22 budget and Capital Improvement Program.  Thank you.

MAYOR MESSAM: At this time, if we have any registered speakers online, if you would raise your hand now, or if there are any members in the public in the Chambers that have any questions or comments for items one and three?  Hearing and seeing none, now bringing it back to the Commission.  The Commission will now discuss the proposed millage rate.  I’ll just go down the line.  Vice Mayor Colbourne, do you have any comments or questions?

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Yes, thank you.  Again, I just want to thank staff for the work that they do.  All staff, you know, City Manager, all down, all the way down.  I know a number of individuals do participate in this, but the Budget Department holds the bulk of it, so just want to say thanks for all the work that was one.  I certainly appreciate us being able to keep the millage rate the same as previous years, and to keep the fire fee the same as well.  I know that that makes a big difference, especially since we -- since property values are going up, and that does affect the -- the taxes as well.  But increase in property value is a -- is a good thing, and -- and we’re happy for that.  In terms of the American Rescue Plan funds, in the presentation it says that $2 million will be going to community outreach, and two million for allowable infrastructure.  I didn’t see a year specific when that would be -- when that would take place.  My question -- I guess my request is that that will come back to us with further details, since it’s not specific as to what’s going to be done with that.  I’m good.

MR. RAFAEL: Yes, Commissioner -- yes, Vice Mayor.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: All right.  Thank you.  That’s it for now, Mr. Mayor.

MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you, Vice Mayor.  Commissioner Chambers.

COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Thank you -- thank you, Mayor.  Must apologize, my camera is not working, so IT is trying to work on that.  I just want to thank the Budget Department, the management, and staff for really great work in putting this budget together.  As always, we have a great team here at the City of Miramar that always do very well for the residents and businesses here.  Just want to applaud them.  I should say that’s it for me for right now, and I’ll have some more comment later.  Thank you so much.

MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  Commissioner Davis.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  I’d like to thank staff for their work on the budget.  Just a few things I’d like to point out.  In terms of the apprenticed and interns, I do see where you have eight positions, four for Parks & Recreation, and four for IT.  They all say “intern”, but there is a difference between interns and apprentice.  The Apprenticeship Program, which started back -- which I had proposed and was implemented sometime 2014 officially, was designed to assist young people who are on the fringes, who were not going to college, and, in fact, this program came to me when I did a ride along with the Police Department.  And at that time over the summer, there were a lot of break-ins into homes, and it was found that a lot of young people, once they finished high school during the summer months were idle.  They were not preparing for college -- those that weren’t preparing for college, and this was an opportunity to have them engage.  I know several, and I know people right now in the program, and they have said that program has saved their lives.  We’re talking about real-life changes for young people.  And that’s something that we should be proud of and continue to improve.  In terms of internships, I have no problem with internships.  However, I do find that there is not a lack of internships.  Corporate entities always have interns.  My sone went to college, no problem getting an internship.  Nieces, nephews, cousins all got internships through their colleges.  That’s just how it’s done.  Government doesn’t have to fill that void, okay.  What government does need to fill the void of is apprentice, because most corporation do not -- do not, despite the fact that they do have possible incentive, tax incentives; they are not hiring at risk youth.  Now in the City of Miramar we have two places where we can recruit -- in fact, more than that actually, because some of the -- the high school, but also the -- I think it’s A. C. Perry or the Perry Adult Education Center, and -- and other places.  And so with these eight interns, none of them are apprentice positions.  I would like to see each of the categories -- for example, Parks & Recreation has four; I would like to see two apprentice out of the four -- I hope you’re listening, folks, please.  And also IT, two apprentice.  The bottom line is, I’ve been a teacher for many years, quite a few years teaching, and I know what it’s like, not everybody is going to college.  However, not everybody also can afford to go to trade school, technical school.  And so, when it comes to IT in particular, most folks don’t even need a college degree to get a good paying job in IT.  It’s a matter of going through, doing the course, and getting a good paying job.  We talk about technology village, let’s start here in the City of Miramar.  So I’d like to see two of the IT position turned into apprentice positions, and two of the Parks & Recreation positions turned into apprentice positions; let’s try to help some people that are on the fringes here.  Let’s try to save some lives, and really do some good where it’s not often in private sector.  I do see there are two openings in Public Works currently.  I’d like to make sure that we’re recruiting for those positions.  And then I do see two open positions in the smart city internship.  One of those, if we can convert that into a Public Works apprentice.  Not -- sorry, not Public Works, sorry, Utilities, excuse me.  Currently, you have three Utility apprentice; they’re all filled, so there are no openings in Utility.  But we have two, four, six smart city internships in Utilities, of which two are not filled, so if we can convert one to an apprentice in Utilities, and make it four positions in Utilities -- currently there are three, and the three of them are filled, that would be something that I would certainly push toward.  So in total, what you would have is two apprentice in Parks & Recreations, two in IT, one of the vacancies that you have in smart cities converted to an apprentice for Utilities, and you currently have two openings for Public Works.  And to actively -- actively recruit for those positions.  Again, we’re looking to change some lives, turn lives around, and that is within our purview, as commissioners, to try to impact lives of young people where there are no other opportunities available; there’s no other such program in town.  So if that could be done, Mr. City Manager, I would appreciate that conversion.

MR. RAFAEL: Yeah, we can definitely do that, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: The other item I -- I would like to ask, in terms of our internal auditor.  What, currently, is in the budget for internal audit?

MR. RAFAEL: The current budget for fiscally year 2022 is $150,000.00, $150,000.00 for the internal auditor.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yeah.  And I understand that they are currently working on Human Resources processes and procedures; I believe there are other items that they are also working on.  Will this amount cover that?  Because I am concerned that there is not enough in the budget to cover the many programs that they’re actually looking into.  And, in my view, that money should be upped to cover these things that they’re looking to review.  Again, probably to the tune of $250,000.00.  I -- I believe it’s 150 now?

MR. RAFAEL: It’s 150 right now.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Right.  Do you have information on what they are actually doing at the moment, and what the cost of their projects?

MR. RAFAEL: Not in front of me, no.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: You don’t have any information?

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: Kelvin -- Kelvin -- Kelvin get up to the -- to the podium and answer these questions, please.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I understand they’re working on the Human Resources process review, Utility billing, diversity and inclusion policies and procedures, ambulance billing.  There’s a whole host of things that they are working on, and we want to make sure that they have enough in the budget to complete the work.

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: If I’m not -- I’m going to say this here, I’ll let Kelvin finish.  If I’m not -- if I’m mistaken, correct me, Kelvin, that the project they work on -- we -- we have purchase orders already in place; it’s just that they haven’t finished the projects.

MR. BAKER: Good evening, Mayor, Vice Mayor, and Commissioners.  Kelvin Baker, Assistant City Manager.  Auditors are very busy doing -- currently doing an audit with the Human Resources Department, an audit in the -- in the Utility, looking at the -- the -- the gas system.  They’ve completed the audit of the p-card program, and there are many other activities that we have scheduled for them in the coming year.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So the 150, does that take into account new projects, upcoming projects?

MR. BAKER: It -- the -- the 150 include a set of activities that is programmed to take place in the proposed year.  If -- if there’s a need to add some additional things on because of, maybe, some activities going on in the City that we would like for them to take a look at, that would not -- that is not included.  Of course, we have no idea what the future may look like, but -- but, occasionally, things will happen in the City, and you’d like for them to jump in and take a look at something special.  But there are scheduled activities that includes the $150,000.00.

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: And, Kelvin, -- 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I -- 

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: -- add this here to.  If we find that you want something to be done, and we don’t have enough money, that’s why the City Manager has the power to use his General Fund continuously.  

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: And so you’d have to come back before us?

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: If it’s over -- 

MR. BAKER: I’m not -- I’m not sure, from a procurement standpoint, if that’s necessary.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: If it’s over 70 -- 

MR. BAKER: If it is, we will certainly come back.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay.  And you don’t have a breakdown of the items at the moment that the 150 is covering?

MR. BAKER: Not -- not in front of me, ma’am, but we can make that available to you.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yeah, if you could, because it appears to be that we should have a -- an outline of the cost, the items that they’re working on, and if the 150 is enough for what they’re doing.

MR. BAKER: Correct.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: And I want to make sure that you’re all on the same page, between you and the internal auditor.

MR. BAKER: Yes, ma’am.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: And one other item -- thank you.  The other item is the capital projects in the Parks Department.  I want to ensure -- when we were here last, that we were putting aside for the Usain Bolt statute.  When I brought it to your attention, it ran between 200 to $300,000.00, and the Manager has been able to find 200 this budget year, which, we’re hoping, will cover the entire cost.  When I mentioned it the last time it would run from, maybe, eight months to nine months in order to engage and get the statue up, so it was important that -- I’m pleased to know that the money was found to be able to complete the project, should it be able to be completed within the nine-month timeframe.  At -- at a cost that’s there, hopefully it’s un -- come underbudget.  But that’s already in the capital improvement budget?

MR. RAFAEL: That is included in the proposed, as presented to the Commission; it’s part of the summertime changes, and it’s also part of the summertime change memo that was received, so it’s -- well, it’s under the Art in the Park $200,000.00 appropriation or proposed appropriation.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay.

MR. RAFAEL: So that is included.  That statue of Usain Bolt is included in that, yes.  So that is the whole project, basically.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: That’s in there, as requested.

MR. RAFAEL: Yes.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you for that.  And, again, I do appreciate the work that was done by the Manager and his team to bring forth this project, and I have no further questions at this time.  Thank you.
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you, Commissioner.  Just a couple of -- couple of comments.  Thank staff for bringing forward a -- a balanced budget, as it relates to our upcoming fiscal year.  A lot of work has gone into managing all of the stressors, as it relates to the General Fund, and most appreciative for responding to comments from the Commission, as well as addressing needs throughout the community.  Some of the items were already touched upon by other comments, but I did want to get some clarity in terms of the events for the upcoming year.  They’re -- you presented a list of Commission-hosted events, and a list of City events.  What’s the difference between Commission events and City-hosted events, just to get a -- some clarity on that?

MR. RAFAEL: So, basically, the Commission-hosted events are events that, for the fiscal year ’22 are going to be funded in the City Manager’s budget, right, and they are hosted by the elected officials.  And then the City events are those events that are citywide events.  So I’m going to let the expert here answer that question.

MS. VALERA: Good evening, Mayor, Vice Mayor, Commissioners.  Yes, the difference is the -- the events that are under the City Manager’s budget are those that are hosted by you, as individuals, and the City events are citywide, and those are -- most of them are just going to be hosted by the -- by the City, with all of you as sponsors of them.

MAYOR MESSAM: Are there any that are not -- just City events but hosted by elected officials, under the City events?

MS. VALERA: No.

MAYOR MESSAM: Okay.  So I just want to -- 

MS. VALERA: They’re all City events.

MAYOR MESSAM: I -- because I know that this is a change, so I just wanted to -- we didn’t necessarily have a workshop on it, or a lot of discussion regarding the -- the difference, so I just wanted to raise -- raise that question.  My other questions are more son on the CIP plan, once we get to that part of the agenda.  But, as mentioned earlier, I’d just like to thank staff for bringing forward this balanced budget.  And one of the highlights I would say about this budget is that it definitely moves us more towards the norm, pre-pandemic.  Obviously, other budgets in the past, we had to really navigate, you know, the choppy waters of dealing with the pandemic, the lack of revenue that is produced by city-provided services, as well as shared revenue from other governmental agencies.  And it appears that, coming up for this year, we can anticipate more of a normal cycle of not just funds, but services that we provide to the community.  So, definitely, would like to, again, thank staff for -- for your work, as well as the Commission in your participation in the process.  Now I will entertain a motion to adopt the ordinance and set the final millage rate at 7.1172.  May I have a motion, please.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Motion to approve.
VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Second.

MAYOR MESSAM: Madam Clerk, record the votes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Chambers.

COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Vice Mayor Colbourne.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Davis.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Mayor Messam.

MAYOR MESSAM: Yes.

On a motion by Commissioner Davis, seconded by Vice Mayor Colbourne, to approve Ordinance #O1779, the Commission voted:

	Commissioner Chambers	Yes
	Vice Mayor Colbourne	Yes
	Commissioner Davis	Yes
	Mayor Messam	Yes

Ordinance No. 21-22

MAYOR MESSAM: Agenda item number three.

3.	SECOND READING of Temp. Ord. #O1780 adopting the tentative Operating and Capital Improvement Program as the City of Miramar's final Budget for Fiscal Year 2022, allocating, appropriating, and authorizing expenditures in accordance with and for the purposes stated in said budget, excepting certain appropriations and expenditures from requiring further City Commission action; authorizing budgetary control by department total for all appropriations; providing for the authorization of all budgeted employment positions; providing for the creation of balanced revenue and expenditure accounts for receipt of monies by gift, grant, or otherwise, and the management and disbursement thereof; providing that the budget hereby adopted may be adjusted or modified by ordinance; providing for the authorization to lapse all encumbrances outstanding on September 30, 2021; providing authorization to reappropriate lapsed Capital Outlay and Capital Improvement encumbrances in the 2022 Fiscal Year; and providing for an effective date.  (Passed 1st Reading on 09/13/21) (Management & Budget Director Rafael Sanmiguel) 

CITY ATTORNEY POWELL: An ordinance of the City Commission of the City of Miramar, Florida, adopting the tentative Operating and Capital Improvement Program as the City of Miramar's final Budget for Fiscal Year 2022, allocating, appropriating, and authorizing expenditures in accordance with and for the purposes stated in said budget, excepting certain appropriations and expenditures from requiring further Commis -- City Commission action; authorizing budgetary control by department total for all appropriations; providing for the authorization of all budgeted employment positions; providing for the creation of balanced revenue and expenditure accounts for receipt of monies by gift, grant, or otherwise, and the management and disbursement thereof; providing that the budget hereby adopted may be adjusted or modified by ordinance; providing for the authorization to lapse all encumbrances outstanding on September 30, 2021; providing authorization to reappropriate lapsed Capital Outlay and Capital Improvement encumbrances in the 2022 Fiscal Year; and providing for an effective date

MAYOR MESSAM: I’ll now entertain a motion to adopt fiscal year 2022 final budget ordinance, please.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Before you do that, if I could just ask a question.  We had a discussion on the audit before, and I know that it was said that there were -- it was budgeted for specific items that they would be completing, but Mr. Kevin actually said that there is no extra money -- there’s no additional money if there -- something would come up.  Now I know the City Manager says that he does have that authority if that happens, but this -- this seems to me like the process to do that.  So I would -- I would like to add some money to that.  I’d like to motion for us to increase that, and I’m thinking, perhaps -- you say it’s 100 and -- it’s currently budget for 150, and that includes no new projects.  So if I were to increase that by $50,000.00, and make it just 2,000.  So I would like to amend the budget, just increase an -- an additional $50,000.00. 

MR. RAFAEL: And we would increase the original fund balance -- 

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: For the -- for the internal audit.

MR. RAFAEL: Right.  And we will increase the appropriation of fund balance, then, by the appropriate amount to balance the budget, $50,000.00.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: I’m sorry, I -- I couldn’t -- 

MR. RAFAEL: We will increase the -- because we have to have a balanced budget, so if we increase the -- the expense item for the internal auditor by $50,000.00, we would have to increase the appropriation of fund balance by $50,000.00.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: So $50,000.00; understood.
MR. RAFAEL: The motion has to -- 

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: I motion to do so.

MR. RAFAEL: Okay.

MAYOR MESSAM: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I second the motion.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Motion to approve.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Second.

MAYOR MESSAM: Madam Clerk, record the votes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Chambers.

COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Vice Mayor Colbourne.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Davis.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Mayor Messam.

MAYOR MESSAM: Yes.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Colbourne, seconded by Commissioner Davis, to amend Ordinance #O1780, increasing the internal auditor budget line item by $50,000.00, and increase the fund balance appropriation by a corresponding $50,000.00, the Commission voted:

	Commissioner Chambers	Yes
	Vice Mayor Colbourne	Yes
	Commissioner Davis	Yes
	Mayor Messam	Yes

Approve

MAYOR MESSAM: Can I have a motion on the ordinance, fiscal year 2022 final budget ordinance, please.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Motion to approve.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Second.

MAYOR MESSAM: Madam Clerk, record the votes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Chambers.

COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Vice Mayor Colbourne.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Davis.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Mayor Messam.

MAYOR MESSAM: Yes.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Colbourne, seconded by Commissioner Davis, to approve Ordinance #O1780 as amended, the Commission voted:

	Commissioner Chambers	Yes
	Vice Mayor Colbourne	Yes
	Commissioner Davis	Yes
	Mayor Messam	Yes

Ordinance No. 21-23


MAYOR MESSAM: Item number two, please. 

2.	Temp. Reso. #R7474 accepting and adopting the City of Miramar Capital Improvement Program Document for Fiscal Years 2022 to 2026, in principle, subject to annual revision and authorization.  (Management & Budget Director Rafael Sanmiguel) 

CITY ATTORNEY POWELL: A resolution of the City Commission of the City of Miramar, Florida, accepting and adopting the City of Miramar Capital Improvement Program Document for Fiscal Years 2022 to 2026, in principle, subject to annual revision and authorization; and providing for an effective date.

MAYOR MESSAM: Good evening.

MS. MC CLARY: Good evening, Mr. Mayor, Vice Mayor, and Commissioners.  Barbara McClary, Assistant Director of Management & Budget.  Tonight we are here seeking City Commission’s approval of Temporary Resolution No. 7474.  This item represents the fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2026 proposed Capital Improvement Program, commonly known as CIP.  Although it’s part of the annual budget, the City’s Capital Improvement Program is adopted separately by resolution.  Each fiscal year, the CIP is reviewed, updated, and a new fifth year is added.  In accordance with information contained in the recently distributed agenda document, the fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2026 proposed Capital Improvement Plan expendit -- expenditure projection included 79 planned capital projects for an estimated total cost of $205.3 million.  However, with the changes previously mentioned by Director Sanmiguel during the annual operating and CIP presentation, the tentative budget being presented tonight for City Commission’s consideration has been amended to include 85 capital projects, an increase of six projects, for an estimated cost of $211.7 million, which is a change of $6.3 million to the Five-Year Plan.  Today, as the City begins to emerge from the pandemic, the first year of the plan will continue to focus on projects aimed at improving and revitalizing the City.  With that in mind, and in line with the Five-Year Plan tentative budget changes, the total capital expenditure that will impact the fiscal year 2022 annual budget is requested to be amended from $32.7 million, which included the estimated cost for 31 proposed capital projects to an increased amount of $33.8 million to support the cost of 37 capital projects., which would result in a increase of $1.1 million to the fiscal year 2022 annual budget.  In addition to in-house and outside funding sources, we have also identified opportunities to reallocate resources, as a mean of funding some of these projects.  The next seven slides will provide a summation of the fiscal year 2022 for tot -- for tot -- I’m sorry, proposed capital projects, and funding information as stated in the agenda document.  Kelly, please allow a few minutes between slides to afford each and everyone time to review.  And as we do so, we were able to use our various resources to effectively address some of the City’s park and public safety facilities, local roadways, infrastructure, and innovation technology needs.  Thank you, Kelly.  Furthermore, this slide provides a view of the six additional projects included in the tentative budget changes for the amended amount of $1.1 million.  More details of each project requested to receive funding in fiscal year 2022 will be shared later in the presentation.  An array of funding sources is used by the City to pay for capital projects.  Presented here is a summary of the 11 proposed funding sources identified to address fiscal year 2022 Capital Improvement Program, totaling the amount of $33.8 million, which is consistent with the change of $1.1 million.  As cited in this summary, the capital projects fund includes a General Fund contribution of $2.9 million anticipated to fund in whole or in part 16 capital projects.  This concludes the overview section of the presentation.  Now, at this time, we will take a closer look at the fiscal year 2022 proposed capital projects, beginning with highlights of projects managed by the Parks & Recreation Department.  
MS. VALERA: Again, good evening, Mayor, Vice Mayor, Commissioners.  Liz Valera, Parks & Recreation Director.  As we know, parks build community, and through the pandemic, our residents endured health and economic challenges, showing a very big uptick in the use of our parks for exercise and social encounters.  By way of the same account, the usage exposed deterioration and needs within the parks that have built -- built up throughout the years.  The approval of this project will provide funding to begin addressing those conditions in our park system.  We intend to prioritize safety and energy efficiency, improvements, and enhancements, so that our residents use and experiences in the parks are what they expect and deserve.  These include fencing, exercise circuits, parking lot repairs, pavilions, playgrounds, courts, trails, etc.  Our next project is our parks restroom facilities; we have 19 park restroom buildings, and six facilities with multiple restrooms.  We have renovated, to date, four of those restrooms, but many remain with need of repair and upgrades.  With this project, we will address the fixtures and lighting for energy and water conservation, as well as floors and partitions, so we can assure sanitary and ADA compliant facilities.  This is a recurring pro -- project that we’ve had, where we focus on replacing the surfaces of the playgrounds, so that they’re ADA compliant and safe.  The City has 26 playgrounds now, and five remain with sand.  The average cost of these improvements are about $25,000.00, and we intend to use these funds to start addressing the five that remain.  During the design phase of the -- of our first skate park in the City, there were some elements that weren’t identified, but in order to have a -- a -- a -- a skate park that can identify the different uses, and we can expand on that, so that we can capitalize on higher profile events, we’re asking for this additional funding, so that we can add those items, and the project is -- this 150 will cover those additional elements that want to be added.  Our east Miramar aquatic pool was built in 2000, and instead of the conventional Diamond Brite finish, it was done with a vinyl -- a vinyl liner that as this -- at this time has already served its purpose; it really needs to be replaced.  We have made several repairs throughout the years, but we’re past that level.  We need to replace the liner now, so that we don’t have failure or compromise the underlying concrete foundation, and also this will include the replacement of the existing water playground features, so it’s going to enhance the use of our community, and create a much more invi -- inviting facility.  Monarch Lakes Park playground.  Monarch Lakes is our newest park, and it’s certainly located -- it’s -- it’s centrally located, and it neighbors an elementary school.  It has a pavilion, a restroom facility, and a walking trail at the present time.  We have a current project that we’ll be adding a second pavilion, and a splash pad, and it will also increase some of the parking lot.  This project, with the addition of the playground, will serve to enhance the park further, increasing the uses, and improving the resident experience.  Shirley Branca Park canopy addition; Shirley Branca has a 2,100 square foot band shell that was built in 2017.  Currently, there’s a restroom building there, a splash pad, a pavilion, there is a very nice walking path, and there’s a central lawn area for seating.  This is the perfect place to hold concerts, plays, and other cultural and social events.  However, we’re challenged by the heat and the weather to hold these events successfully.  This project intends to install a cover over the lawn area, and replace the sod with an appropriate surface that will complement the shade structure, and the uses that we intend to have there.  By adding the shade cover, we’re going to reduce temperatures at the park by 15 to 20 degrees; this project will also further the City’s efforts to enhance history -- Historical Miramar.  Harbour Lakes Park is coming up on its fifth anniversary, and since its development, we added a playground, and a picnic area.  These increased -- these added uses have increased the popularity of the park, and the number of users that are coming, so what we have found is challenging is for them -- for them to be able park accordingly.  So what this project will do is allow us to expand the existing parking lot, and avoid residents from parking on the sod or damaging the park field.  Huntington Park South; currently, we have three parks in the Huntington neighborhood.  The community has reached out to us expressing the need of a restroom facility at the park.  They’ve also expressed their desire to add other amenities within the park.  With this project, we plan to address all these needs in different phases.  This particular project will pha -- will fund phase one, which will be the addition of a restroom facility, then we’ll take the other requests in phases in the following funding years.  Art in the Parks, as expressed by Commissioner Davis, this was put into our -- our -- into our budget as the request -- initial request to add a Usain Bolt structure or statue at the Ansin, but we also wanted to also -- we’re going to fund it this year for $200,000.00, and look to continue these efforts throughout all our parks, making this more of a generic, re -- reoccurring project in the City.  Thank you.

MR. COLLINS: Good evening, Mr. Mayor, Madam Vice Mayor, Commissioner, City Manager, Tony Collins, Public Works Director.  So Public Works has a number of CIP projects that is being proposed for the fiscal year 2022.  First one that we’re going to present here is the street and construction resurfacing.  For fiscal year 2022, the funding amount is approximately $3.4 million.  This is going to be addressing asphalt repairs at various locations throughout the City, but primarily along Miramar Parkway between Flamingo Road and 145th Avenue, about 2.5 miles of roadway.  Next project is repair and replacement of existing sidewalk, and estimated amount of about $203,174.00; this is an ongoing project; it will seek to address ADA issues and pedestrian safety for various locations throughout the City.  Next project is the bus facility infrastructure improvement program.  We’ve gotten requests for two bus stops we designed and installed along Miramar Parkway, the vicinity of one -- between 148th and 1 -- and Flamingo Road.  This project, which seeks to -- removal of trees in the city-maintained canal; there’s -- on the east side, we’ve recognized over the years that is a lot of overgrown vegetation, and this project will address those issue.  The objective is to increase capacity, and to reduce flooding.  Any questions.

MAYOR MESSAM: Maybe later. 

MR. ZUNIGA: Good evening, Mayor, Vice Mayor, Commissioners, City Manager, City Attorney.  Sal Zuniga, City Engineer.  This project is the Ansin Sports Complex, Phase IV, which consists of various improvements to enhance this facility.  The improvements include a new access road, which is being constructed now -- was recently awarded, again, future improvements consisting of a parking garage, and a recreational administrative building.  The funding being requested for this year is to advance funds for design and construction of future phases.  This project is a multiyear project, landscaping beautifications along various roads in the City in the medians.  Some of -- some of the segments have been completed already.  The funding being requested on fiscal year ’22 is to complete the segments on Miramar Boulevard and Miramar Parkway between University Drive and Palm Avenue.  This project is to extend the eastbound right-turn lane along Miramar Parkway from Dykes Road toward the I-75 entrance ramp.  This project is intended to address some of the congestion and backup that -- that is created along Dykes Road of people going northbound and trying to go eastbound to get -- to get into I-75.  So we coordinated with FDOT and worked out a deal where they will design the project, they will manage the project and construct it, but we will provide the funding for the construction, with the funding being requested on fiscal year ’22 is for the construction cost, and any contingency that might arise during construction.  This project, it’s a bike lanes and sidewalk improvements along several locations in Miramar.  This is part of a Broward MPO grant that we received; the grant is reimbursement based, meaning that we have to up front the money for the design, and also for the construction, and then we get reimbursed on a quarterly basis.  So the funding being requested in fiscal year ’22 is for design.  This project is to construct a dedicated, westbound, left-turn lane along Miramar Boulevard and Buttonwood Avenue.  We’ve got several requests from residents about having difficulty turning into the community, so we conducted a study to see if a dedicated left-turn lane was warranted; the study indicated a turn lane was, indeed, warranted, so the funding being requested in fiscal year ’22 is for design and construction of a turn lane.  And I’ll be here for any questions, thank you.

MR. JOHNSON: Good evening, Mayor, Vice Mayor, Commissioners, members of the dais.  Daryll Johnson, Support Services, Construction Administrator.  The proposed projects for fiscal year ’22 are as follows: first project we have before you here is the City of Miramar 9/11 Remembrance -- Memorial Monument.  As you are aware, two weeks ago, on the 20th anniversary of this tragic event, we had the groundbreaking dedication service, and the current scope of work for this is -- I’m sorry.  The current status of the work is the design is 100 percent complete; should this item be approved, we are looking to start the construction in November of 2021, and the scope -- the scope of work will improve the pro -- the project will include -- will include the -- the monuments, also actual I beam virtual members that were donated -- they were actual relics of the actual 9/11 memorial, and also we’ll have a fountains standing monuments, wall, and pedestal.  -- project, please.  This next project is the Vizcaya practice and running track; for fiscal year ’22 funding, we’re -- we’re requesting $150,000.00, and the project scope of work will include the -- will include the design services for a newly proposed running track with an open play -- play field area.  Next slide, please.  This next project is the covered awning system for Vizcaya Park patio area; we’re requesting $100,000.00 fiscal year ’22 funding; this will in -- the scope of work will include design and construction of the covered awning system at the exposed north patio area.  If I could direct you to the pictures there, the upper picture shows the exact location where this proposed awning will be placed.  Next slide, please.  This next project is the West Water Treatment Plant laboratory and office space mod -- modification.  This -- we’re requesting for fiscal year ’22 $400,000.00, and this will cover the F/F/E for this project.  Currently, this project is -- construction is ongoing, and we anticipate -- we anticipate completion in March of 2022.  Next project.  Next project of the mon -- monument signs for the community -- Community Service facilities.  We’re --we’re requesting $145,000.00 for the fiscal year 2022.  Apparently, this project has already been bid, the design is 100 percent complete, and these four monument signs will -- will be located at the Adult Daycare Center, Fairway Child Center, Sunset Lakes Child Center, and Silver Shores Child Center.  To the right are the actual designs of these digital marquee signs that will -- will be placed at each facility.  Next project.  Next project is the barrier wall at County Line Road.  We’re requesting fiscal year 2022, $200,000.00, and the scope of work will -- will cover the survey, and design services for approximately 3,118 linear feet of six-foot high precast concrete, barrier wall to the -- if I could direct you to the pictures.  To the left, the upper left, you will see the existing wall conditions, and to the right you -- you will see what we’re proposing for fiscal year 2022.  -- slide please.  This next project is for Fire Station 107 driveway expansion; we’re requesting $200,000.00.  The current status, the design is 100 percent complete -- 100 percent complete; the project includes the expansion of the existing Fire Station 107 front and rear driveways to allow for immediate ingress and egress of emergency vehicles.  Next project.  Next project is the fire and rescue logistics and storage space at the West Police Substation; we’re requesting for fiscal year 2022, $301,000.00; this -- the current status, this is a new project, and the $301,000.00 will cover the -- the design services for the partial conversion.  The newly proposed design will also include design for administrative offices, logistics and training area, and also equipment storage space.  Next project.  The next project is the Vicki Coceano Childcare facility replacement with new recreation and multipurpose facility; we’re requesting for fiscal year 2022 $400,000.00, and that will in -- that will incorporate the design services, and also miscellaneous demolition for the newly proposed two-story, 10,000-square foot recreation and multipurpose facility.  The facility will include indoor in -- intermural sports, gaming, administrative offices, restrooms, conference and multipurpose rooms.  Next project is the covered awning system at City Hall third-floor terrace area.  We’re requesting $100,000.00; this project scope of work will include design and construction of the -- of a covered awning system at the third-floor terrace area.  And that concludes the Support Services, thank you.

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: Good evening, Commission.  The Historic Miramar innovation technology village; the project consists of $8,740,000.00 in here, and let me give you a -- a snapshot of all the improvements that’s going to take place.  As we show, we’re going to have to let the residents know, as you recall, that we also, at the same time, will be dealing with utilities and drainage in the area.  So the first thing we’re going to have to deal with, and staff has sat down and -- and discuss -- discussed this, is that in order for us to do any improvements there, we are going to have to take care of the infrastructure.  Therefore, the 33 -- 33rd Avenue, we’ll be bringing that across; we’ll also be doing -- remember that’s Phase IV for drainage, that’s going to take place.  The -- we went out for a bank loan, and we -- we’re -- we -- for $8 million in here, and we will use $3 million of that particular for all the improvements of the roads that’s inside the area.  We have met with the School Board in here, and we’ve been seeing this ourselves for a long time, and the improvements that take place, and staff had met with the residents in here in terms of what we needed to do there.  So there going to have to be some patience in here, and I know that staff will probably be getting slapped up, beat up, and everything else with people complaining, because no matter how you look at it, when you start doing improvements, it becomes a very uncomfortable situation.  But we have learned from Phase III in here, and I assure you that our City Manager will -- and I’ll just say it just like this: our City Manager and Kelvin Baker, and -- and Shaun, and -- and the team in here, they will make sure that we do good communications, so that we make sure we stay on top of the project.  So let’s just take a look at what’s going on in here, even inside the innovation center area in here that’s going to have to have stormwater, which you can fund from that, and we got utilities that’s going to be a part of.  We’ve got infrastructure, water, and sewer lines in there that’s going to have to be improved.  So the project has a lot of improvements, because you got to remember that when the YEC was built in here, basically, we got to remember that that was a wastewater plant, so there are issues that we have to deal with that, but also we got to concentrate on Wellman’s for a -- Wellman’s Park, as well as Perry.  As you know, we are probably going to go out -- award the bid in November to get that project started, which should take no more than five months to get it done, not two years.  That will take place and in the same time in here.  There -- there’s something else that needs to be important -- is that, as we take on this project in here, we got to understand or something that we need to focus on, and that’s Wellman’s Park, all right.  Not to my knowledge, but I’ve learned from my attorneys in here, I have learned from staff in here that there are certain things that you have to do when you deal with -- with properties that you want to designate as affordable housing area.  First of all, if you can see on the top here, Florida Statute 166-0441 identifies that you must identify the properties in here, and you have to do an inventory in here, and it has to be approved by the Commission that that is what you plan on doing.  So tonight, what we are attempting to do in here is to make sure it’s been identified, that the Wellman’s Park is going to be a site for affordable housing, in which we have to get Commission approval from this here.  Yes, we have already did the zoning, all right, and we have gone through that process identified, but this has to be done -- this particular project, in terms of the Florida statute.  Part of that is, is that you got to also make sure that you identify the address and everything on there, everything -- all those particulars need to take place in here.  What that does is it gives the Commission the opportunity to decide as to how they’re going to leverage the properties, or how they’re going to use -- how to use their best leverage, and making sure that we have affordable housing in that location.  There are all kind of techniques you can look at, but the one thing is everybody talks about was the value of the of the property.  Well, instead of looking at the value of the property, what we’re going to be looking at is how can we leverage the -- the -- the property value, so that we can reduce the cost, all right, for affordable housing, so that we can reach everyone that we can, particular -- we want to make sure that police officers and teachers, non-responders, workers have a opportunity afford.  So this project is going to be very sensitive, but we’re going to take some time to get there, so everybody got to understand.  Now what is happening in this project in here is that we have allocated $2 million out of fund balance to support that project, and we also have another million dollars that was donated to that project in there.  Why is that so significant?  Because the whole idea is to try to reduce the cost of construction, and reduce the cost for our residents to be able to move inside that facility.  So we’re trying to use all our resources.  Yes, people could say that we could use that money and get people to come in there, but the bottom line, what do we want; the end result that we want is affordable housing, that’s the bottom line is.  So we can talk and drag, go round in here, but at the end of the day, the vision is for us to have affordable housing, which the Commission support; that’s extremely important.  The same thing is, is that if you look at the economics of the area in here, all right, it’s not growing, and if you really take a real close view, and you’ll find out that many of the -- the residents in here are renting.  We got to change that portfolio; we need to bring affordable housing in here for our teachers, for our police officers, for -- basically, for our workers as well in here, because you know that we’re going to find out that at the end of the day in here -- I was just looking at a study in here -- is that Broward County really has a very shortage of affordable housing, and the price it cost.  I have a son, that price of just renting is -- is outrageous in here.  How many can our workers can afford to live in a townhouse that they own?  That’s the American dream, to have something that you own.  So that project right there is that we’re making sure that we put everything in our place in here, and making sure at the same time that there’s a partnership with our commercial.  We have the Ansin family that wants to be a part of this heres well in in here, we have other Fortune 500 companies here that we’re talking with.  We need -- we’re going to have folks there, then we need to also build up -- as Commissioner Davis says, is that we need the apprenticeship, we need the different programs in here, so that 33023 don’t become a laughingstock in Broward County, because, you know, 33023 is us.  That’s us.  So having to address the affordable housing, and address the -- the need for us to change people’s view on -- on economic opportunities, we have work to do.  It’s not going to be overnight, because we got to do -- deal with the infrastructure improvements, but where we’re going in the future it’s about Historic Miramar; a destination.  Thank you.

DR. VIRGIN: Good evening, Mr. Mayor, and Madam Vice Mayor, and Commission, Mr. Manager, Attorney, City Clerk.  Roy Virgin, Director of Utilities.  The Utilities Department have a few projects that we would like to highlight, and it’s hard to come after the City Manager, but it’s good to know when you have a city manager that has a utility leading, that you will -- the Utilities Department will, indeed, get some highlight.  And the first project we have here is the sewer line rehabilitation, and for fiscal year ’22, we’re asking $350,000.00 for this project.  This is a ongoing project, and what it does, really, is to ensure that we maintain the efficiency of the pumps on our -- in our collection system, and to ensure, also, that as the -- the -- the useful life of these pipes are worn, that we are able to repair them.  This is every critical to our collection system or our sewer system as -- as you know it.  The next project is our meter repair and replacement.  This project we’re very pleased of, and, as a matter of fact, this project has won us the smart city, one of the smart city award with our advanced metering infrastructure, otherwise called AMI, and the state of the art for -- for this -- this piece of equipment in the -- in the metering section -- and I really want to stress this, because, you know, in the interest of time though, is that we’re going to get to the stage where we can automatically turn off meters without going out in the field.  Right now, for -- for order read, we’re at 93 percent citywide, and we’re aiming to get to 100 percent in the near future, so this is the direction to which the City is going with our metering replacement program.  Our reclaim water system expansion, which is west of I-75, is not only a water conservation project, but, also importantly, it will help to meet those obligations that we have to Cooper City, City of Hollywood, in terms of re -- virtual reuse, and also that will be able to secure some allocations, so that we can draw a little more from our Biscayne Aquifer.  As small as -- as it might be, but this is the kind of investment that we’re making in our infrastructure.  Our waterline/main replacement program is also important, and we talked earlier about the sewer, now we’re talking about waterline, because here what we have is we’re producing water, and sometimes there are leaks in the system, and we have to account for all of those water that -- that get lost.  So this year we’re asking -- fiscal year $500,000.00 to ensure that we keep those lines as good as they can, and to able to identify and to report accurately all of our water loss.  Our Country Club Ranches water main improvement; this is a big project we at least talked about for a few years, and we are happy to say that the project is on its way.  The project will be divided into a number of phases, because this will be done over -- over time, and Phase IA is about 40 percent or thereabout.  The project is moving faster than we anticipated, because we’re doing directional drilling, and by March of next year, we’ll be -- this phase will be completed, and resident will be able to have water for this phase, and you can see the subsequent phases that we have, IC, which we -- we hope to have construction started in next fiscal year, and the design and permitting for the other phases.  Utilities collection and distribution system improvement,  also is our Master Plan, takes a comprehensive view -- a comprehensive look at what our system looks like.  This will capture where there are deficiencies, where there will be growth in the future, and what we need to do, as a utility, to ensure that we meet the demand for the -- for the -- the -- the -- the population growth.  Our West Water Treatment Plant capacity improvement upgrade, and I mentioned earlier about population growth; the census just came out, and what happens as population grows, so do we have to prepare and provide additional services.  In this case, the plan is upgrade the capacity, we’re now increasing it to 2 -- 2.5 million gallons per day additional, using water from the Biscayne Aquifer, and also there is a well at Huntington Well Field, which is already permitted -- will be conveying that to -- to the West Water Treatment Plant.  But you will see coming forth, Commissioners, that we’ll -- there’ll be a number of projects to deal with these improvement as we move forward.  And it is indicative on the -- the census that came out as to where we are at this juncture, and how fast we have to move with making sure we -- we meet some of these obligations.  Our Wastewater Reclamation facility capacity improvement and rerating; now what we do on the water side clearly has to do with on the -- on the -- on the wastewater side, so as we improve our capacity on the -- on the water treatment side, we also have to look at the wastewater site, as we -- our collection system, and how we -- we treat these, so this is the same approach.  We’ll be asking for a million dollars to really take a look at what we’re doing.  We started some initial work there, and as these project come in on both the water treatment and the wastewater will go hand in hand to meet the -- that demand that we spoke of earlier.  That’s some of the Utilities project, thank you.

MR. JENKINS: Good evening, Mayor, Vice Mayor, Commissioners, City Manager, Clayton Jenkins, IT Director.  This evening I’ll be going over four different projects that we have from the IT Department for -- for tonight.  The first one that I will have in front of you is the SCADA cybersecurity improvement.  This a project that we’re working -- and we’re teaming up with the Utilities Department, as he just expressed, with the different water infrastructure projects that they’re working on.  We’ll also have been working with them in this project, where we’re working to focus on tightening up the cybersecurity controls within this water infrastructure that they have.  As we seen in the -- in -- not just in near past, but we had attempts where cities up north where the -- different individuals have tried to take over their water infrastructure.  So understanding the importance of that, we’ve been working with them, and making sure that those controls are in place.  And this project is just a ongoing progress; we will continue to work with them, continue to tighten those controls, continue to evaluate, and look for those different gaps, and making sure that those things -- those security controls are put in place.  Next.  The next one that I have here in front of you is the Tyler 311.  This is -- once again, we’re partnering with the Utilities Department in their help with the 602-HELP, and the CSRT group, and this system here is a system where we’re looking to consolidate and have one system, where the 602-HELP will have one system to report all the different nonemergency issues that may arise throughout the City that the residents will report; they’ll report those issues in.  It - with the system, they’ll be able to see the -- report the issues in, be able to track and stay on top of them, see them from beginning all the way to finish, to a solution is provided, and be provided different updates.  And we want to tie all of these things in together, have sort of a one-stop shop, and trying to tie in, not to have so much multiple systems, but to have accountable one-stop shop for nonemergency issues, so that we can make sure that they assign it to the right departments, whatever the request is, and then make sure that it’s followed through, and the residents can check it -- check these services online to make sure that what -- their request is completed.  

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: And this program, Commission, ties into our innovation village in here, because the one thing that’s key in here with GIS is collecting this information, you need to collect that data and be able to understand what it says, and what you can do with it.  We had a meeting with FIU in here, and we learned a great deal what they were doing here.  There’s a lot of information we capture, but it’s just sitting somewhere in a file.  At this point now, we’re considering ourself a smart city.  To be able to take that data and use that data to improve the services that we provide in Miramar.

MR. JENKINS: Correct.  And, as the CM stated, like I said, we want to go to the one-stop shop where all of this data will be housed -- will allow us to look deeper to get a better understanding, and then move in the direction of being more proactive to really try to attack these things before they happen when possible.  But, yes, that -- that will all be included as we -- this will be the first step in that direction.  The next one that I have in front of you is the smart city surveillance system and Real Time Crime Center.  This project will be a phased approach.  Once again, we’ll be partnering -- starting in the Phase I approach, we will be partnering with the Utilities, as we’ve been talking about the water infrastructure, and protecting those things.  So one of the things that we have to do first is put a infrastructure in place that’ll allow us to run the cameras and store all of this video, and things of that nature, and that will be our main focus in this project for Phase I -- is to replace all the infrastructure, all the servers, and all the storage, putting updated equipment in place, so that when we have cameras in place, and putting cameras in -- in the seven critical utility facilities that have been identified by Utilities, to makes sure that the -- once again, another layer of protection for this water infrastructure.  But, also, on top of that, this infrastructure that we’ll be be putting in place, would not only just stop there, it’ll be a infrastructure that will allow us to expand, and that expansion will go citywide, and that expansion will in -- include the Real Time Crime Center, which will be the next phase of that one -- we’ll be able to look into what type of functions, what things do we want to include when it comes to Real Time Crime Center, so -- but the first phase that we’re looking at is to make sure that we have put a infrastructure in place that can support that bigger vision of going citywide in Real Time Crime Center.

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: And Historic Miramar is a part of that vision in here, because you got the police substation in here, and we got the village that we’re building in here, in terms of residential.  There’s no reason in -- in -- in -- in -- in 2021 that we should not be thinking about making sure we have fiberoptic and -- in the History Miramar, so that our residents will have access to internet, and that’s what’s it’s all -- for a city not to have access to internet is just shameful, and that means that you’re about 20 years behind.  So all these things have to come in place in here.  So you’re talking about water and sewer, but you’re also talking about your internet services, your IT.

MR. JENKINS: Correct.  And the next one I have in front of you is a -- a intergov application or a system that, once again, we’re going to partner with CED Department, and this system will be to upgrade the system that they currently have, and bring in more of their services online, so the residents can complete more services online when it comes to their permitting -- permitting -- permits, and different automated processes.  So we’ll be working with CED, and this system will, once again, tie into all of our infrastructure that we have here.  Once again, tie things together, being able to gather all of that data, get a understanding of what’s going on from permit standpoint, all the different information that they’re gathering, helping us to be more proactive, more of a smart city as we move forward.  

MS. MC CLARY: Thank you for the opportunity to present the fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2026 proposed CIP budget.  The City Manager recommends approval of Temporary Resolution 7474, as amended, with the tentative budget changes.  Staff is available to answer any questions you may have.  Thank you.

MAYOR MESSAM: All right, thank you.  Before we go to our public hearing, at this time, we will check in to see if there are any registered viewers, or anyone in the Commission to, at this time, please raise your hand to speak if you are in the Chambers.  And you’ll be given an opportunity to address the Commission for three minutes for item number two.  Pursuant to Florida Law, this public comment is being heard prior to the adoption of any measures by the governing body.  At this time, are there any members who wish to speak, or have and comments regarding the presentation?  Seeing none, and being given any -- not being given any indication that there are anyone virtually, bringing it back to the Commission for public hearing.  Commission will now discuss the proposed Capital Improvement Program document.  I’ll just go down the line.  Vice Mayor Colbourne, you’re recognized.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Thank you.  I’d like to thank staff for -- for the presentation.  I think the presentation was really -- was really good, especially for our residents, so that they can see all the many things that -- that we are currently working on that affects their -- their neighborhood, and affects all of the City of Miramar.  I was very -- very pleased to see that we have projects from -- from park improvements, you know, sidewalks, roadways, major infrastructure, to -- to projects that deals with -- with cyber and in smart cities.  And that, also, that these projects address the entire city, from -- from east to -- to west.  I -- I do want to thank the City Manager, in particular, for addressing and including some of the projects that we have discussed, including the barrier wall on 215, and -- and -- and the mul -- Multipurpose Community Center, which is now the Vicki Coceano Childcare.  I certainly appreciate that.  I look forward to seeing this approved.  Thank you.

MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  Commissioner Chambers, you’re recognized.

COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Thank you.  Just want to echo what Vice Mayor Colbourne had said, and regard to staff and City Manager presenting this -- different projects, as to -- related to the residents understanding what’s taking place, and what’s to come.  Do appreciate the fact that we’re moving quickly to -- giving the residents of Country Club Ranch potable water.  But I do have some reservation in regards to the innovated technology district, as to maybe we could have looked for an alternative, maybe partnering with the Adult Educational Center to -- to have some savings there, which staff is already existing building.  I’m not sure how well the City will operate that facility, you know.  As we know, certain things best left to the public or the schools to run, so I do have some reservation with the -- the innovative technology and the cost and so forth.  But, with that said, it’s quite a few important project; looking forward to discussing the -- the Wellman Field before we approve that; just another concern of mine, so I definitely want to give our resident every opportunity to make sure that we’re moving in the right direction, in terms of that community out there.  And I think that’s it for me for right now, and thank you so much.

MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Davis, you’re recognized.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  I, too, would like to commend staff for their presentation.  The slides were very informative.  I made some notes here that I’d like to just get some more detailed information on or -- or present some more details to you.  I’d like to start with the Parks Department, and the Monarch Lakes Park.  I noticed that our playgrounds are pretty much -- they’re very -- you know, they’re all the same throughout the City.  There’s a lot of innovative playgrounds now.  You go to Hollywood, you see the different types of playgrounds at the Arts Park, more interactive, open to different ages.  I think that the park here, because Trilogy is next door, it has a regular playground, that we should look at doing something that we see in other cities such as Hollywood, not the traditional slide and swings.  You know, we -- we got to kind of move away and out of that, because there’s limited availability to kids when it just comes to a slide and a swing.  I’d also like to see, maybe, we could have -- and I’ve seen it in other places, a table tennis, just a structure there that you could just have, you know, somebody wants to bring their -- their -- their -- their table tennis racquets or balls.  It’s actually there, you can, you know -- the teens and the tweens can actually do something.  Because, as it is right now, playgrounds are really not for them.  And so if we could have something innovative for that park, I’d appreciate it, come up with some ideas, not just the traditional slide and swings.  In addition, a resident had mentioned to me about badminton.  Obviously, I’m -- I’m not asking for that this year, but just to look into how many badminton courts are in Broward County, and if there is a need or if there’s any interest in having a badminton court.  That’s it for parks.

MS. VALERA: Will do.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you.  Public Works.  I know you didn’t mention anything about canal bank improvements; are we good there, you have money this year budgeted for 2022?

MR. COLLINS: Tony Collins, Public Works.  Yes, we do.  We have money that will be carried forward from this current fiscal year into next year.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay.  And then, secondly, I’ve asked about this before, in terms of the -- the pavers in front of City Hall.  You know, I have pavers in front of my home, and I have to, you know, make sure I sand them or do what I have to do for my pavers to be right.  These pavers are not conducive to women that wear high heels.  I bought a brand-new pair of shoes, I came through here, it’s -- the heels’ already scuffed up.  I’m just waiting to hear that somebody fell in the cracks of these pavers and sprain their ankle.  I think, in terms of maintenance, this is something that has to be done, and it should be budgeted for.  Is it budgeted for, or what are you planning to do with these pavers that are cracked, crooked, uneven, and they’re just not conducive to walk on?

MR. COLLINS: So we have requested funding in the past to address those concerns, and they weren’t approved.  Suffice to say that we have found some money in this current fiscal year that we have set aside to address some of those paving concern.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: What timetable do you have?

MR. COLLINS: We were just trying to close out this fiscal year, so once we get into the new fiscal year, we set aside, like I said, money in the capital outlay, so we’re looking, probably, you know, the procurement process, it’s going to be over $75,000.00, so it has to go through a procurement -- we probably thinking about maybe three months into the new fiscal year.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay.  And so we’ll be able to walk with our high heels, and not have to think we’re going to trip over, and be able to walk anywhere on the paver area, or is it a specifically -- specific area that you’re going to carve out for us to be able to walk?

MR. COLLINS: Yes, we -- the fact that we don’t have sufficient funds to do the entire courtyard or the plaza area, we’re proposing to identify a safe path from the sidewalk that leads into the main entrances to the -- to the buildings.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you.  I appreciate it.  Thank you.  Support Services.  And I -- I know you mentioned a digital monument.  Is it similar to what we have at the fire station over there by Flamingo and Miramar Parkway that we’re looking at?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, ma’am.  All four are similar -- may not be as big, but they’re -- they’re definitely similar.  They have the digital display, and the monument signs; it’s just not as big.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: And that is so that they can advertise various events that they’re having at these locations?  For example, if school’s out, they can put that on there; if there’s a -- a -- a parent meeting, they can advertise is there.  Is that the goal?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, yes, ma’am, that is correct, yes.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay.  Great.  And you mentioned the west police substation.  What is currently going on over there?  Do they actually have police there?  Is it manned, or what is happening there.

MR. JOHNSON: To my knowledge, it is manned.  Currently, it’s dedicated to the police department.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Maybe we could have the Police Chief mention -- because I’ve heard that there is -- the west police station is not functioning.  What is -- what is actually going on there.

INTERIM POLICE CHIEF BURGESS: Good evening, Lennie Burgess, Interim Chief, Police Department.  Currently, right now, we have our training unit that is there, that shares that entire location with our fire department, which is the logistic section.  We are occupying the gun range, as well as the nearby -- towards the back with some of the parking for some more evidence, and retaining some of our vehicles involved with some crimes.  That is our current status.  Anybody that responds or walks up to that station, it’s occupied in a sense where they could press the button.  It relates directly to our communications center, and we will have uniformed units respond there or are assigned to the nearby area on the west side.  

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So you’re telling me that if somebody wants to go and do a police report, that’s not possible immediately?  

INTERIM POLICE CHIEF BURGESS: They would come -- 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: It’s -- it’s not -- it’s not manned at the moment?
INTERIM POLICE CHIEF BURGESS: No, it’s not manned; only officers we have there are the three training officers.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: The original intent for that location, what -- what -- what was it originally designed to do?  And -- 

INTERIM POLICE CHIEF BURGESS: The original -- oh, I’m sorry, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: And when did this change, in terms of the functionality -- because, again, it was brought to my attention by residents in that location that it is no longer a police substation, and my concern is that we are very linear.  We tout ourselves as having equal amenities, east, central, and west, and, as it stands right now, I’m not too comfortable in the fact that this has changed course the way it has.  We have built a beautiful facility in -- in -- in east Miramar, we have this location here, but I’m concerned that we are moving away from its intended purpose.  And I’d like to know, historically, what was there?

INTERIM POLICE CHIEF BURGESS: That is correct, Commissioner, the original intent was a fully blown training facility for the police department.  We are now sharing it with the fire department, and they are providing logistic.  I’ll let the fire chief share that -- the historical aspect.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: And so the funding -- 

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: Let -- 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: -- is -- 

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: Let me a -- 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Go ahead.

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: -- when we built the facility and understood we built that facility to (unintelligible 1:49:12).  Right.  It sat there for years, all right, not being utilized.  The whole idea behind that (unintelligible 1:49:19) -- the growth that took place on the west in here, that we would have something very similar as the substation that’s on -- in -- on the east side.  But what has happened is, their structure of the police department do not have a defined unit that’s assigned there, because there road patrol takes care of everything, am I correct?

INTERIM POLICE CHIEF BURGESS: You’re correct, City Manager.  That unit’s --

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay, so -- 

INTERIM POLICE CHIEF BURGESS: -- assigned to the west side.
COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yeah.  I’ve been here since I was elected in 2010, so I have an idea -- I have been over to that facility when it was functioning, as I’ve just mentioned, where there was staff there when you go in, and they would be able to take a report.  There were volunteer folks there from the community who were there.  So I have an understanding of what was there prior to what is going on now.  And, as I have mentioned, this has come up on the very able app Nextdoor that we do not have that capability in the west side.  So we’re asking for funding for what exactly?

FIRE CHIEF PALMER: Evening.  Mayor, Vice Mayor, Commissioners, Robert Palmer with the Fire Department.  What we’re looking for funding is to actually remodel the building to satisfy for our logistics side; that’s what we’re looking for funds for, is to set up that building for the logistical part for the fire department.  We came out of a warehouse into that structure, now we’re making it, you know, fit -- fit the needs.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So is it you’re building onto the structure, or it’s equipment?  What exactly are we looking at here?

FIRE CHIEF PALMER: What we mean -- what we’re doing -- 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Are you changing up -- what are you changing that’s already there?

FIRE CHIEF PALMER: We’re changing out the layout inside, yes.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Inside?

FIRE CHIEF PALMER: Yes.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay.  I would like for us to see how we can have what used to be at that location incorporated into what we’re doing.  Meaning, that if somebody wants to file a police report, somebody is -- needs access to an officer, that that is available at the west substation.  That’s how I’ve known it to be -- and I get it, you need space for -- and I’m assuming you can accommodate that, but I’d like to see how that can be done.  Again, we pride ourselves on having -- just like how we have a senior center in the historic neighborhood, we have one in the east side.  We have a lot of equal facilities throughout the City, and I wouldn’t like to see that not being available to the residents out west.  Is that something that we can look into?

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: What that would look like, is whether we’re going to have some volunteers, the way they had it before in there, in the City in there, so if anybody got -- because that’s they way it was, it was a volunteer that was sitting in there for -- for a period of time.  And then the volunteer kind of like disappeared out of that, all right.  So for us to have a volunteer, somebody sitting there to take any complaints in here, and he’s already got it laid out in here, where he’s going to have -- still staff sitting there, because part of that is still the police department.  It’s -- basically it’s a public safety building back there, that’s what it is for both.  So, yes, we can -- we can make some modifications with that.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: All right, thank you.  Appreciate that.  Moving -- moving along quickly here.  The City Manager project with the historic technology village, I’m all for -- for that.  I -- I have mentioned before that I would love to see an area when the building is finished that is open to a business incubator.  Again, we’re talking about helping young people, and older folks being able to be innovative, and be able to have their own businesses, and to provide them technical support, and support where they can have their business, a fledgling business start up and -- and thrive.  I -- I’d like to see that.  There was some talk of possible a public/private partnership with the Caribbean Museum.  These are just ideas as well that I’d like to put out there, and, possibly, an art incubator as well.  I know the City of Pembroke Pines has an art incubator, and it does well.  I don’t know if it has to be there, but an art incubator would also work well over there.  Now, recently, myself and Anita Taylor were at the Florida -- I believe it -- sorry, the Broward Alliance meeting, and Bertha Henry, the County Manager was talking about grants that are available for affordable housing, and I’m not sore -- sure, Anita, had you brought back that information to Kelvin?  Because there was a timeline on that, and I just want to know if anybody has done anything to find out about monies that are available, grant monies from -- from the County for affordable housing projects, and we’re talking about affordable housing in our historic neighborhood.  That might be something we should be graveling towards.

MS. TAYLOR: Commissioner Davis, yes, I did inform ACM Baker about the availability of grant monies.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Anita.  So, Mr. Baker, have we made a phone call, have we looked into it?  What -- what’s the story on that grant?

MR. BAKER: Good evening, Mr. Mayor, Vice Mayor, and Commission, we -- we have made contact with the -- with the County.  We will follow up with them.  In fact, Mr. Silva was the one that actually made that call, but we will follow up with them.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I appreciate it.  We don’t want to let money go, you know, that we could use.  And I forget the amount; it was quite a bit, several million that they want us to apply for if you have affordable housing projects.

MR. BAKER: (Unintelligible 1:57:07).

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay.  Thank you.  I appreciate that.  And, finally, with IT, I certainly appreciate the projects.  I am really pleased with the Real Time Crime Center.  This is something that goes along with the ShotSpotter system that I’d asked our Police Chief to look into, as well as the City Manager’s Office, and Chief Burgess and I, with other staff members, had gone over to BSO to look at their Real Time Crime Center, as well as Miami Gardens, and I certainly appreciate this being put into the budget.  The -- the ShotSpotter system, that was already approved?

MR. JENKINS: Yes, that’s been approved.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So the ShotSpotter system is approved, the Real Time Crime Center will be able to support the ShotSpotter program, meaning that the -- the -- the shots will be captured at the Real Time Crime Center, and maybe -- maybe, Police Chief Burgess, for the -- for the sake of the community, just to explain a little bit.  Because I know when you gave your presentation, it was mainly about utilities, and it didn’t really say much about the Real Time Crime Center, so I would like for Chief Burgess just to tie the two in, what it would involve, and to -- to let folks know how the Real Time Crime Center actually will function, in terms of crime.

INTERIM POLICE CHIEF BURGESS: Thank you, Commissioner.  I know you’ve got this answer, CJ, and you’re bigger than me, but okay.  The facts of the matter is it was brought to the Commission -- thank you, City Manager, as well, and -- and Commissioner, for bringing the ShotSpotter technology, which as been budgeted and approved, and we’re looking forward to rolling it out by the end of this week.  The little delays were in the permitting; it was about like $20,000.00 of permitting that needed to be taken care of, 62 acoustic sensors have been posted at different buildings.  We have got support.  We have attended at least seven to 11 HOA meetings, as well as thank you for marketing and putting information out.  That’s what’s in place now.  CJ has explained the so-called technology aspect with the camera system.  What will soon be follow will be the Real Time Crime Center; that will be the last, final component where we’re looking later down the road to go ahead and set up a location within our police department, and have the same setup that you saw, and a few other members of the Commission was able to see at Broward Sheriff’s Office, as well as Miami Gardens.  So just to give you a little brief synopsis; that’s what we’re looking for.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you for that update.  And that’s it for me.  Thank you so much.

CITY MANAGER HARGRAY: Commissioner, I want to -- I want to add something to you.  We -- this is not the end.  What is next is -- is the business, so in partnership with the business.  As you recall, when we was in Miami Garden, they were meeting with the business, so we want to make sure the business be a part of that, so that they can assist us with the funding in the future.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Appreciate that, Mr. Manager.

MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  I, too, would like to thank our staff for putting together a well-thought-out capital improvement program that it -- it’s very comprehensive, it touches every aspect of our city.  Obviously, all of the needs of the City can’t be addressed this fiscal year, but this plan over the next five years really lays out a lot of groundwork to move our city forward.  Before giving some highlights on a couple of -- of projects, I do want to get some clarity in regards some of the budget amendments for the CIP.  There are a number of projects that have been reprogrammed, or the funding have been reprogrammed, where it -- where there’s no funding for this fiscal year.  That doesn’t necessarily mean that the pro -- the projects won’t move forward, I just want to get clarity, in terms of what the reprogramming is, and I just want to make note of them.  The first are directly related to promises in regards to the revitalization of Historic Miramar, and particularly with our streets and revitalization and streetscapes.  And, therefore, the Historic Miramar Complete Streets development, it was completely re -- reprogrammed, the dollars of $71,000.00.  Historic downtown revitalization, funded out of the 2017 CIP lun -- loan fund for $65,000.00, completely reprogrammed with no funding for this year.  Miramar Parkway Streetscape in the heart of Historic Miramar, SW 64th Avenue to SW 68th Avenue for $128,000.00 completely reprogrammed.  Now these aren’t -- these aren’t large dollar amounts, but the projects are -- are significant, so I just want to know that if -- are these projects cancelled, or is it just that funding?  I just want to understand what the reprogramming for those.  Because there could be other line items -- this could, perhaps, be partial funding, but for that line item, all of those dollars came out of that funding source, so I just want to understand what -- what the reprogramming of those specific dollars, as what was placed on the schedule, what does that reflect?

MS. MC CLARY: Okay.  Currently, those projects are completed, all -- all three of them -- 

MAYOR MESSAM: Okay.

MS. MC CLARY: - are completed projects.

MR. ZUNIGA: Yes, correct.  Those projects were completed, and those were leftover funds, somewhere -- funds that were recouped later on, because they were involved with grants.

MAYOR MESSAM: Okay.

MR. ZUNIGA: So we got reimbursed for some of those funds.

MAYOR MESSAM: Okay.  Great.  That’s what -- that’s why I reserve to take a position that’s -- you know, that’s why I just wanted, because the -- it does not state that the projects were completed.  Because many times these capital projects extend multiple budget years, so I just wanted to just to get some -- some understanding on -- on that.  Also, now one that isn’t complete, though, is the Pembroke Road/SW 160th Avenue, the -- the Pembroke Road Project Miramar Parkway extension, a million dollars were -- were those City dollars that was brought back in, because we have surtax dollars to -- to bridge the gap?  Can you just provide some clarity on that?

MR. ZUNIGA: Correct, because this project was combined as one project with all the segments on Pembroke Road, and since it’s being funded with Broward County surtax money, so this money has been freed up.

MAYOR MESSAM: Okay.  And the other -- the ADA evaluation and correction, it was -- was that $55,000.00 left over off a prior project that’s been completed, or -- 

MR. ZUNIGA: Yes, that was money that was left over, that is really not needed at this moment.

MAYOR MESSAM: Okay.

MR. ZUNIGA: There’s still going to be some future evaluation, but it’s not needed at -- at the mo -- at this moment.

MAYOR MESSAM: And my last question as relates to the projects presented, the -- there were street construction projects, as well as re-pavement, so that probably crosses over Engineering and Public Works, I would imagine.  So I’ve made this request several times, as it relates to getting some milling and resurfacing of some of the roadways out west, because there has been some patch work, I’ve seen, around Monarch Lakes on Miramar Parkway, just east of 145th and Monarch Lakes Boulevard that has been done.  But are there any other areas that are planned, because there -- there really as not been any significant resurfacing of roadways out west.  Most of the roadways out west, especially in the gated communities, aren’t maintained by the -- the City.  They’re -- they’re maintained by the homeowners’ association, but our thoroughfares, Dykes Road, 172nd, 184, I know we have some project requests out there for some of the major projects.  But just on the -- the -- the -- the resurfacing, are any western communities included in some resurfacing?

MR. COLLINS: Tony Collins, Public Works.  So the -- the proposal for next fiscal year is to address a section of Miramar Parkway west of Flamingo Road, so we did some patch work there just to address immediate safety concerns.  We did it in such a way that when we come to resurface in the next round, we won’t have to remove that area.  So we’re looking at -- for the $3 million, we’re looking at about two and a half miles of roadway, six lanes, so we should be able to get to around Dykes Road.

MAYOR MESSAM: Okay.

MR. COLLINS: From Flamingo going west, both -- both directions.

MAYOR MESSAM: Okay.  Go ahead.

MR. ZUNIGA: I’d just like to add that we also have a mobility project along Dykes Road; the -- we’re doing through a Broward MPO grant that will accommodate bike lanes that will also include resurfacing Dykes Road from Bass Creek to Pembroke Road.
MAYOR MESSAM: Okay.  What -- what I would like to request, similar to a request I made many years ago regarding our stormwater management, when -- when many our communities were -- were enduring flooding during rain -- during the rain seasons, that they had no idea of when their communities would be done.  And so staff put together a phasing program, as relates to dissecting areas of Historic Miramar to say when those areas -- how much it cost, and when we anticipate getting done.  Similarly, I think we should do that for -- not just the west, centra, but all of the City, where it’s more like a master plan, where we assess -- we have an idea, internally, how much this resurfacing is going to cost, so that we can communicate to the residents, so when we get inquiries, we can point to this master plan and say: Well, in your neighborhood, it’s going to cost $2 million to resurface four miles of roadway work, and we anticipate it being done second quarter of 2024, you know, given the funding.  So I think something like that would help us, as a commission, as well as staff, to communicate to the public when we can anticipate these roadways getting done.

MR. COLLINS: Just to share this information that the City did a pavement management study some years ago.  The study seeks to address exactly what you’re describing.  We’re at the cycle now where the study needs to be updated, so we’re going to be looking at that going forward, but we certainly rely on the information that we got from that study back -- I think it was 2016 -- to determine which road ought to be prioritize based on the rating system.  But, like I said, when we looked at the data, we’re at the point where the point where the study has to be now -- take another fresh look at it, and get it updated.

MAYOR MESSAM: All right, thank you.  Also to -- regarding the -- thank you, sir -- the -- the innovation village.  Obviously, the -- the innovation village has had a lot of discussion surrounding it, and it has a lot of potential.  It can definitely support a number of programs to meet many interests of the community, as well as the marketplace.  We have a real, unique opportunity to really make an impact, not just in Miramar, but in South Florida, and in the heart of Historic Miramar, impacting the residents there, as well as the region.  We have an opportunity to solidify and build upon existing relationships with higher ED, with venture capital, with corporate America, which, by the way, invests billions of dollars in new technology to keep them competitive in the marketplace.  We have an advantage to take advantage of marketplace disrupters.  We have an opportunity to maximize technology innovators.  We have an opportunity to give skills, and to create businesses that yet to exist.  So when we’re talking about starting businesses, when we’re talking about crating a space for startups, what better way than to attract and teach our own community, partnering with some of our existing corporate residents, to be a part of their advancement; talk about job security, talk about business viability.  So when I say we have an opportunity to be the mecca, there are so many industries that are migrating to South Florida.; many of them are already here.  We have a very successful biomedical company here that created one of the first vaccines for China, right here in Miramar.  And they’re continuing to advance technology.  So when we talk about our little students, our young boys, our young girls that are in our elementary schools, and middle schools, and high school, what better way than to create a space with a partnership of the marketplace to advance.  That’s the potential.  So it can really benefit and create economic opportunity and prosperity for our community, along with it also coexisting with some programs that may include the arts, that may include culture.  It’s not a zero-sum game, either/or, because all of this activation can work together.  So I’m really excited about the potential of this, and we can do this in a way where we don’t leave the community behind.  In fact, the community will be a big part of this.  So -- so I’d really like to thank staff for, not just in areas of our own personal interests, but -- but throughout the -- throughout the CIP plan, there is something we can point to that directly benefits the City as a whole, the City as a whole, and with the resources that have been committed to this -- to these various projects.  It -- it definitely makes -- it should make all of us feel proud, not just as the City Commission, City staff, but the community as a whole.  And I’d like to thank everyone for their -- their contributions, from my colleagues to the City Manager, the budget team, and the various departments, and our city employees that all play a specific role in doing what we are called to do, and that is to provide a great quality of life for our residents and our business community.  With that stated, if there are no other comments or questions, I’ll entertain a motion to adopt the Capital Improvement Program document resolution.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Motion to approve.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Second.

MAYOR MESSAM: Madam Clerk, record the votes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Chambers.

COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Vice Mayor Colbourne.

VICE MAYOR COLBOURNE: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Commissioner Davis.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

CITY CLERK GIBBS: Mayor Messam.

MAYOR MESSAM: Yes.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Colbourne, seconded by Commissioner Davis, to amend Resolution #R7474, the Commission voted:

	Commissioner Chambers	Yes
	Vice Mayor Colbourne	Yes
	Commissioner Davis	Yes
	Mayor Messam	Yes
Resolution No. 20-163

ADJOURNMENT

MAYOR MESSAM: And, on that note, there’s no further business.  The second hearing on the budget has been concluded.  Congratulations everyone.  Look forward to a great and prosperous fiscal year.  This meeting is adjourned.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:23 p.m.
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